
  
BELLBROOK CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
November 12, 2019 
 
6:00 pm Work Session - Budgeting for Police and Fire Departments 
 
7:00 pm-Regular Meeting 
 
1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  

3. Roll Call 

4. Formal Approval of the Work Session and Regular Meeting Minutes of October 28, 2019 

5. Mayor’s Announcements/Special Guests 

Employee Service Recognition 

Bellbrook Lego League Team 

6. Public Hearing of Ordinances - none 
7. Introduction of Ordinances  

• Ordinance 2019-20 An Ordinance Amending Chapter 1060 of the Bellbrook 
Municipal Code to Increase Rates Charged for Refuse Collection (Greenwood) 

8. Resolutions - none 

9. City Manager Report 

10. Committee Reports 

A. Service 
B. Safety 
C. Finance/Audit – Finance Update 
D. Community Affairs  

11. Old Business 

Request to Remove the Walking Path from the Approved Plans for Section 3, Phase 1 of 
Highview Terrace 

12. New Business 

13. Open Discussion 

14. Adjourn 

City of Bellbrook 
15 E. Franklin Street 
Bellbrook, Ohio  45305 

T (937) 848-4666 
F (937) 848-5190 

www.cityofbellbrook.org 





RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Meeting and Work Session 

October 28, 2019 
 

   1  

PRESENT: Nick Edwards 
Forrest Greenwood 

  Elaine Middlestetter – arrived at 7:05 
  Dona Seger-Lawson 
  David Van Veldhuizen, PhD 
  Mayor Mike Schweller 
   
This is a summary of the City Council work session and regular meeting held on Monday, October 28, 
2019.  Mayor Schweller called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.   
 
City Manager Melissa Dodd prepared the 2020 budget that included an estimate for the remainder of 
2019.  She said that there will be another supplemental appropriation needed before the end of the 
year.  The city will still be under budget. 
 
Mrs. Dodd showed council the budget worksheet for 2020.  She estimates that expenses will end up 
$485,000 more than 2019.   
 
 
ROLL CALL 

Mr. Edwards, yes; Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mrs. Seger-Lawson, yes; Dr. David Van Veldhuizen, yes; Mr. 
McGill, yes; Mayor Schweller, yes. 

Mr. McGill made a motion to excuse Mrs. Middlestetter from the Council meeting as she was stuck in 
traffic.  This was seconded by Mr. Edwards, yes; Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mrs. Seger-Lawson, yes; Mayor 
Schweller, yes.  The motion passed 6-0. 

Mrs. Middlestetter arrived at 7:05 pm. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

FORMAL APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

After polling members of City Council, as there were no corrections or additions to the work session 
and regular meeting minutes of October 14, 2019 Mayor Schweller declared the minutes approved as 
written. 

 
MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS/SPECIAL GUEST  

Beautification Awards were presented by Rob Johnson.  Robert and Michele Johnson are the Chairs of 
the Beautification Committee.  They took over for Bronne Wilson.  He thanked all the members of the 
committee including: Sophia Briley, Diane Harris, Bonnie Howe, Betty Ogrod, and Pat Robinson.  
Winners received a certificate and an engraved rock for their yards. 

Area A 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Meeting and Work Session 

October 28, 2019 
 

   2  

4269 Clearview Court - Michael & Joni Dingledine 
2223 S Lakeman - Robin & William Logsdon 

Area B 
4035 Eckworth - Alex & Diana Fabrick 
4098 Maxwell - Dale & Bronne Wilson 

Area C 
4216 Beryl Drive - James & Patricia Brady 
1665 Cedar Court - Dale & Susan Steele 

Area D 
3588 Big Tree Road - Hannah & Matthew Couch and Doug & Annie Smith 
143 Upper Hillside - Roger & Sharon Dohner 

Area E 
1905 Little Sugarcreek - Thomas and Vicki Craycraft 
1828 Von Hovel Court - Vernon & Kristen Oakley 

 
The Mayor swore in Timothy Tuttle to the Planning Board.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OF ORDINANCES  
 

Mr. Edwards read Ordinance 2019-19 An Ordinance Repealing Ordinance 2019-14 and Adopting new 
Ordinance 2019-19 to Adjust the City of Bellbrook Appropriations for 2019.  He explained that this is 
just revising the starting and ending amounts that were wrong in Ordinance 2019-14. 

City Manager Melissa Dodd explained that this was due to a clerical error.  The revisions themselves 
stayed the same.  

Mr. Edwards made a motion to Introduce Ordinance 2019-19 An Ordinance Repealing Ordinance 
2019-14 and Adopting new Ordinance 2019-19 to Adjust the City of Bellbrook Appropriations for 
2019.  Mrs. Seger-Lawson seconded the motion.  The Clerk called the roll.  Mr. Edwards, yes; Mrs. 
Seger-Lawson, yes; Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mrs. Middlestetter, yes; Dr. Van Veldhuizen, yes; Mr. McGill, 
yes; Mayor Schweller, yes.  The motion passed 7-0. 

 
INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCES - none 
 
RESOLUTIONS - none 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
City Manager Melissa Dodd reported that a first meeting took place with our Service Director and LJB 
Engineering about the design on the Franklin Street Bridge project.  The project is on track to be ready 
if MVRPC funding becomes available. The final design will be ready in 2020. 

Mrs. Dodd updated Council on the Small Business Revolution television show.  Anyone who nominated 
Bellbrook to be on an upcoming episode will receive an email about the next step. 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Meeting and Work Session 

October 28, 2019 
 

   3  

The Farmers Market is done for the year.  The final Saturday was canceled due to rain.  It was a very 
successful first year.  One of the vendors has stepped up to run it next year. 

The Date for the Brook Mills 10 K and Be Well Bellbrook has been set for August 22, 2020.  The Lion’s 
Club festival will take place the next weekend so there is no conflict there. 

Mrs. Dodd announced that she was coordinating an event called Bellbrook Open for Business in the 
spring.  This will be an event to highlight available business properties. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Service:  none 
 
Safety:   Mr. Greenwood reported on the Plug the Gap initiative from Dave Yost the Ohio 
Attorney General.  This is in response to the shooting incident in Dayton and other cities around 
the country.  The goal is to have schools and local Police Departments team up ensure the 
safety of our school children.  More information is available at the Attorney General’s website. 
 
Finance/Audit:   Mr. Edwards said that the first of three work sessions took place earlier to 
discuss the 2020 budget.  Council looks at every item line to make sure that the tax money is 
well spent.  The budget will be voted on and put into place by the end of the year. 
 
Community Affairs:    Mrs. Middlestetter reminded the public that Beggar’s Night would be 
held on Thursday, October 31 from 6:00 to 8:00 PM. 
 

OLD BUSINESS  
Greene County Master Trail Plan Support Request 

Mrs. Dodd explained that Greene County Regional Planning and Greene County Parks and Trails are 
creating a trails masterplan.  They are asking all of the county’s political subdivisions to contribute to 
the cost. 

Mrs. Middlestetter made a motion to commit $1,250 for the creation of the Countywide Trails 
Masterplan.  Mr. McGill seconded the motion.  The Clerk called the roll.  Mrs. Middlestetter, yes; Mr. 
McGill, yes; Mr. Edwards, yes; Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mrs. Seger-Lawson, yes; Dr. Van Veldhuizen, yes; 
Mayor Schweller, yes.  The motion carried 7-0. 

 

NEW BUSINESS  

Request to remove the Highview Terrace Walking Path 

City Manager Dodd summarized the staff report for Council.  The walking path follows along the edge 
of Lot 50 of Highview Terrace.  The main points Mrs. Dodd emphasized are that the path is part of 
approved final recorded development plan.  The path is part of a 50-foot-wide utility easement.  
According to the plan, the maintenance and liability for this path is responsibility of the Homeowner’s 
Association.  There is also an easement from 1975 that follows along the Little Sugar Creek. Although 
part of the area in question is in the flood plain, a walking path is not considered an issue.  The request 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Meeting and Work Session 

October 28, 2019 
 

   4  

was heard by the Planning Board who spent two meetings discussing it and went to walk the site. No 
revised plan has been submitted by the developer which is the usual way a request would come to 
Council.  The Planning Board voted 3-0 to deny the request. 

This information was sent to Council ahead of the rest of the meeting’s agenda packet to allow Council 
more time to review the information.   

The Mayor asked the property owners if they would like to speak. 

James Cyphers, the property owner asked who Mr. Schieman is.  Mrs. Dodd explained that he is a local 
expert on the watershed and flood plain issues.  Mr. Cyphers added that when the Planning Board 
came to the property, they only looked at the path through Highview Terrace not the older path along 
the creek.  He and his wife are very concerned about the risk of having this path on their property.  The 
path goes across a drainage basin that has been having severe erosion problems.  He claims that chips 
and dust is the only thing that can be placed on that easement, not pavement.  The county had to add 
a two-foot extension on the drainpipe due to all of the erosion.  Mr. Cyphers opined that the city wants 
the path no matter what and that non-residents are claiming to want the path. 

Mayor Schweller stated that this situation is one Council has not dealt with before.  Ideally, he said he 
would like for the residents to work with the developer to find a solution.  The Mayor walked the path 
with Mr. Cyphers and asked City Staff to take another look at the grade and topography.  He added 
that he would be surprised if the City’s Engineer approved a path with such a steep grade and opined 
that maybe that all changed when the plans were changed.   He requested that both the City and the 
developer’s engineers take another look at it. 

Mrs. Middlestetter agrees that the topography has been changed. 

Mrs. Seger-Lawson added some path is needed wherever it works best.  And if there isn’t a designated 
path, people will take the shortest or easiest route which is probably right through the Cypher’s yard.   

Mr. Edwards asked if a soft surface is the best idea.  Our city has plenty of steep walking areas.   The 
Council needs all of the facts from an engineer so that an appropriate decision can be made.   

Mr. Greenwood agreed with all that was said.  He asked again about the liability.  Mrs. Middlestetter 
answered that the HOA is liable. Mr. Edwards added that there are similar situations in other 
developments. 

Mr. Cyphers said that when they bought the property Nate told them there would be a walking path 
for the Highview residents.  He recounted that they have gotten a lot of people walking through their 
yard and up by their house.  They had not thought this would be a path used by everyone in the city.  
The path is included in the Comprehensive Plan as a multi-use path.   

Bill Dahling, 1839 Sugar Maple Place, asked if the city has an easement for the path?  Council answered 
that the HOA has the walking path easement.  Mr. Dahling is confused if it has to be a sidewalk or a 
path and as a multi-use path it should be in conjunction with the city.  He opined that this is a quasi-
public path and should be a partnership between the development and the city.  The plans are for a 
path, not a sidewalk.  He referred to the Sidewalk Ordinance 2019-17 that would put further 
requirements on the path.   



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Meeting and Work Session 

October 28, 2019 
 

   5  

Tim Tuttle, 1791 Sugar Maple Place, stated that they moved into Highview Terrace expecting a path to 
access downtown.  He agrees that the grade has changed in the last two years after the plan changed. 

Katherine Cyphers, property owner, added that part of the 50-foot easement is supposed to be a 
landscape buffer. 

Sandy Dahling, 1839 Sugar Maple Place, is the designated HOA treasurer.  Since the development is not 
yet complete, the HOA is not fully formed and consists of the developer and the treasurer.  Mr. 
Clemens is in charge of everything at this point.  The dues at this time go for maintaining the entrance, 
landscaping, and common areas.  Until the developer finishes and turns over the HOA, it doesn’t own 
anything.  Originally there were 12 property owners.  Now there are 34 property owners, many of 
whom do not know the history and requirements for the path.  She recalled walking along where the 
path originally should have gone.  But it has all been changed so much, she can no longer walk it.   

Louis Schazberg, 4082 Ridgetop Drive, was on the Planning Board when the development was originally 
designed.  There was always talk of walking paths and green space which is a requirement for 
developments.  It was to be the developer’s responsibility to put in the path.   

Mrs. Seger-Lawson recalled the same discussions and added that in lieu taxes Mr. Clemens was going 
to donate the green space for a walking path.  

Mr. Edwards opined that if the elevation has significantly changed, it needs to be corrected so that the 
path can go in.   

Dr. Van Veldhuizen was also previously on the Planning Board and remembers the requirement for a 
path.  He said the developer needs to speak to this.  These plans predate the current Comprehensive 
Plan.   

James Cyphers, watched as the construction crew was moving around the dirt in that phase of the 
developer.  He has also had to do some of his own regrading of the soil.   

Mr. Edwards would like to know the liability issue and who is responsible.  Green Meadow Ranch has a 
path that is owned by the HOA. 

Mrs. Middlestetter added that any sidewalk on your personal property is a public easement, but the 
property owner is liable and responsible for it.   

Katherine Cyphers, added that at the May 9, 2016 Council discussed the surface of the path.  It was 
determined that it should be chips and dust due to runoff and flood plain issues.  March 12, 2018 the 
City Manager said it couldn’t be paved due to the flood plain.  

Dale Wilson, 4098 Maxwell Drive, recounted that as the previous Service Director he had walked this 
area many times.  At the time he and the City Manager Mark Schlagheck followed what is the red 
marked path on the map provided tonight.  Their biggest concern was how to cross the creek to Magee 
Park.  He thought the Service Department would maintain that path.  The City did require the 
developer to put a water line in there to connect to the sewer to create a loop in the system.  Mrs. 
Middlestetter agreed and added that the developer couldn’t deed the green space to the city until the 
development was done.   

 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Meeting and Work Session 

October 28, 2019 
 

   6  

OPEN DISCUSSION 

David Buccalo, 126 Lower Hillside Drive, spoke about the Dart Building.  The property maintenance 
case is before the BZA/PRC at this time.  He added that Mr. Dart was not in attendance.  He claims that 
the fines for the violations are creating a hardship on the property owner.  He opined that 
questionable actions have been taken by City Staff who have treated Mr. Dart unprofessionally.  There 
have been 27 violations filed with fines of $6,700.00.  He opined that the cost of the repairs would be 
over $100,000.  He said he doesn’t understand why there are fines associated with zoning violations 
and would like Council to consider repealing that.  He said he believes this causes no damage to the 
community and Mr. Dart should be given more time.  He recounted that Mr. Dart told him there has 
been no communication between him and the city but staff has told Mr. Buccalo otherwise.  He opined 
that there needs to be a balance between the administrative and legislative branches of this 
government.  He asked that Council look into the performance of the administrative staff and to delay 
the Dart PRC case.   

Mr. Buccalo believes the old village review board is being marginalized.   He added that there is effort 
to include old village businesses but not the old village residents.  He claimed that the city has people 
from Centerville, Beavercreek, Sugarcreek and other places on committees but not Bellbrook.   

 

Mr. Greenwood and Mrs. Middlestetter thanked the citizens who come out to meetings and speak up. 

Mrs. Seger-Lawson welcomed Mr. Tuttle to the Planning Board.  She reminded the public that Beggar’s 
Night is on Halloween, October 31 from 6 to 8 PM rain or shine and Friday is the last High School home 
football game.   

Dr. Van Veldhuizen added that next Tuesday, November 5 is Election Day. 

Mr. McGill meet with a representative from American Signal Corporation to discuss weather sirens.  
They showed him a potential system for a minimal cost.  They recommend having 2 omni-directional 
sirens for our city that would include an old one on the building that was once the volunteer fire 
department.  The system is run by cell phone. 

Mayor Schweller recommended that if anyone has further questions or comments those can be 
submitted to staff or Council.  Tuesday, November 5 is an important election for the city of Bellbrook 
and encourages everyone to vote. 

 
ADJOURN 

Being no further business to come before the Bellbrook City Council, Mayor Schweller declared the 
regular meeting adjourned at 8:37PM. 

 
 
______________________________________ 
Michael W. Schweller, Mayor 
 
____________________________________ 
 Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council  



RECORD OF ORDINANCES 
 

Ordinance No. 2019-20 November 25, 2019 
 

  1  

 
CITY OF BELLBROOK, OHIO 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-20 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1060 OF THE BELLBROOK MUNICIPAL CODE TO 
INCREASE RATES CHARGED FOR REFUSE COLLECTION. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Bellbrook currently charges residents $14.00 per month for normal refuse 
collection; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Bellbrook has completed a review of current and future expenditures 
related to the Waste Collection Fund; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Bellbrook Waste Collection Fund has been operating at a deficit and 
decreasing reserves; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Bellbrook wishes to bring revenues in line with expenditures and must 
increase rates in order to do so; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 1060 of the Bellbrook Municipal Code needs to be amended in order to 
increase rates by $1.50 per customer to $15.50 per month.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF BELLBROOK HEREBY ORDAINS: 
 
 Section 1.  That the following amendment to Chapter 1060 of the Bellbrook Municipal Code 
be approved with deletions shown by brackets and strikethrough and additions shown by italics and 
underlined: 
 

§ 1060.05 is hereby amended as follows: 

Effective January 1, 2019 January 1, 2020, there is established a monthly charge of fourteen 
dollars ($14.00) fifteen dollars and fifty cents ($15.50) for normal refuse collection within the 
City.  All utility bill payments shall be applied first to refuse charges and any remaining amount 
shall be applied to water charges.  Said refuse charge shall be paid by the occupant of each 
occupied single-family residence and by each occupant of a multifamily residence not covered 
by a commercial contract pursuant to Section 1060.04(a).  Each operator of a business which 
generates a normal amount of refuse shall pay the normal collection charge, unless other 
arrangements are made pursuant to Section 1060.04(a).  Each operator of a business which 
generates refuse in excess of the normal amount shall make arrangements for commercial 
collection in accordance with the provisions of these Codified Ordinances.  Any residential user 
of the refuse collection service who generates refuse in excess of the normal amount shall pay a 
surcharge equal to the actual cost of collecting such excess.  For the purposes of this section a 



RECORD OF ORDINANCES 
 

Ordinance No. 2019-20 November 25, 2019 
 

  2  

normal amount of refuse shall mean a weekly accumulation which is capable of being contained 
in ten or fewer thirty-gallon containers, exclusive of yard waste such as grass, leaves or brush. 
 
Section 2. That this ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period 
provided by law. 

 
 
PASSED this ____day of ___________________________________, 2019. 

 
 
 
Michael W. Schweller, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Stephen M. McHugh, Municipal Attorney 
 



 

Page 1  
 

 

To: Mayor & City Council 

From: Melissa Dodd, City Manager 

Date: November 8, 2019 

Subject: November 12th City Council Meeting  

 

• Budget Work Session – Fire, Police and Capital – starts at 6pm  
Once reviewed, the final 2020 budget will come before Council as an ordinance at the 
November 26th meeting.  
 

• Introduction of Ordinances  
o 2019-20 An Ordinance Amending Waste Collection Fees – As a result of the budget 

discussion, the waste collection fee will increase from $14 to $15.50 per month 
beginning in January. This is to balance the revenue coming in with the expenses being 
paid directly out to Rumpke for the service.  

 
• Staff Recognition – Tonight we are honoring 9 employees for their dedicated service for 

anywhere from 5 to 35 years of service. Bellbrook staff is incredibly loyal and dedicated and I 
am absolutely honored to work with these fine folks. We truly do have the best city staff 
around I do believe! Congratulations to all being honored this evening! 
 

• Updates 
o Auditor of State Award for 2018 – A staff member from the Ohio Auditor of State’s 

Office came by last week to present the award for excellence in financial reporting to 
the City. This is for our 2018 financial statements.  

o Brook Mills Appreciation Plaque – Brandon Hough, Race Director for the Brook Mills 
10k brought a plaque that has one of the medals and a race bib framed as a thank you 
to the City. It is proudly hanging in the lobby.  

o Lions Club Meeting – I went and spoke at the Lions Club meeting on the 6th to talk about 
the happenings in the City. I gave a year in review for 2019 and gave them some ideas 
for goals in 2020 which consisted of chipping away at the Comprehensive Plan. It went 
really well and they were pleased to have me come.  

o Farmers Market – I met with Pamela Jeltema, who is a farmer’s market vendor and 
Bellbrook small business owner. She has offered to help with the farmers market. We 



 

Page 2  
 

 

are hoping to use this off season to really learn from the past year and make the next 
year even better. We are hoping to expand it to a weekly event as well.  

o Website – I have revamped the Boards area of the website to give each board their own 
page to be able to increase the amount of information related to each. We have 
uploaded previous meeting packets from this year and will post current meeting 
agendas and packets as they are created. This will ensure that the information is 
accessible to the public. This is a key piece to continuing to be as transparent as possible 
and utilizing our website to a fuller extent.  

o Safety Day – Our annual safety day will be held on November 20th. This helps us to fulfill 
our insurance requirements and also gives staff an opportunity to get together and 
learn. Council is invited to attend!  

o Staff Christmas Party – Our staff Christmas party is scheduled for noon on December 
20. Council is of course invited to attend this as well! 

o Upcoming Council Meeting Items – The next two Council meetings will include the 2020 
budget ordinance as well as the final supplemental appropriation ordinance to address 
any last minute needed changes which I expect to be minor in nature.  

o Staff Changes : 
 Service Department -  Maintenance Worker Tyler Bond has left as he took 

another position. We have offered the position to Kyle Stout who is the husband 
of Officer Alexi Stout. He is still going through the process but expected to start 
on November 18.  

 Police Department – We have filled the position of Administrative Assistant and 
Nichole Etchison started on November 5. She comes from the City of Kettering 
and brings a wealth of experience.  We have also filled the open Police Officer 
position with Stephanie Bennington, who comes to us from Yellow Springs 
Police Department. Stephanie will start on November 18. 

 Planning and Zoning – Jeff Green will be leaving as of November 27. Jessica 
Hansen of Greene County Regional Planning will be filling his position of 
Planning and Zoning Assistant and will start on December 9th. Council may 
remember her from our Comprehensive Plan process as she worked extensively 
on the plan. I look forward to having her join the team.  

 

 



 

10/25/2019  Submitted by M. Dodd 

City of Bellbrook 
15 E. Franklin Street 
Bellbrook, Ohio  45305 

T (937) 848-4666 
F (937) 848-5190 

www.cityofbellbrook.org 

To: Mayor & Council 
 
From: Melissa Dodd, City Manager 
 
Date: October 25, 2019 
 
Subject: 3rd Quarter Financial Update 

 

The following is a brief summary of the City’s financial status: 

Cash Balance & Investments: 

• Total ending balance of $6,828,156 as of September 30, 2019.  Total encumbrances outstanding at 
the end of the month are $587,173 which leaves an unencumbered balance of $6,240,983. The 
following is a breakdown of unencumbered balances by fund type: 

Property Tax Supported Funds ............................................................... $3,743,152 

Transportation Restricted Funds ............................................................... $386,842 

Water Fund ............................................................................................. $2,590,598 

Waste Collection Fund ................................................................................. $86,615 

All Other Funds ............................................................................................ $20,950 

• Investments (agency securities) totaled $1,898,105.30 as of September 30th.  In addition, 
$3,304,889.65 was invested with STAR Ohio earning 1.99%. 

Revenues: 
• The following is a summary of major revenue sources: 

 
Actual thru Actual thru % change 
9/30/2018 9/30/2019 from 2018 

Property Tax $2,736,645 $3,081,978 12.62% 
Homestead & Rollback 416,052 559,334 34.44% 
Local Government 
Funds 69,063 76,791 11.19% 

Cable Franchise Fees 81,580 77,963 -4.43% 
Gasoline Tax 202,554 214,614 5.95% 
EMS Receipts 60,583 77,353 27.68% 
Waste Collection Fees 303,773 332,056 9.31% 
Water Fees 1,018,696 1,064,080 4.46% 
Tap-in Revenue 360,200 174,200 -51.64% 
Grand Total Revenue 
(excluding transfers) $5,873,545 $6,219,723 5.89% 

 



 

9/30/2019  Submitted by M. Dodd 

 

 

• The breakdown of tap-in fees by subdivision is as follows: 

 

Subvidivion  Qty Amount 
Highview Terrace 5  $                   15,000  
Landings 20  $                   60,000  
Redwood/White Oaks 11  $                   90,200  
Waterford -  $                           -    
Regent Park Place -  $                           -    
Miscellaneous 1  $                     3,000  

TOTAL  37  $                 168,200  
Expenses: 

• The following is a summary of expenses by type: 

 
2019 Total Actual thru % of Total 

Budget 
Budget 9/30/2019 Spent 

Wages & Compensation $2,772,281 $2,109,887 76% 
Fringe Benefits $949,660 717,084 76% 
Contract Services $1,410,839 1,028,613 73% 
Supplies & Materials $258,200 155,662 60% 
Capital Outlay $638,830 405,616 63% 
Other Expenses $47,725 50,741 106% 
Debt Service $136,142 140,975 104% 
Grand Total Expenses 
(excluding transfers) $6,213,677 $4,608,578 74% 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

3rd
Quarter

2017

4th
Quarter

2017

1st
Quarter

2018

2nd
Quarter

2018

3rd
Quarter

2018

4th
Quarter

2018

1st
Quarter

2019

2nd
Quarter

2019

3rd
Quarter

2019

M
ill

io
ns

 
Total Gallons of Water Billed 



 

9/30/2019  Submitted by M. Dodd 

 

Capital Projects: 

The following is the status of major capital projects included in the 2019 budget: 

Project 2019 Original Budget 2019 Estimated Project  
  Amount Amount Complete 
Infrastructure 
Annual Street Repair and 
Resurfacing $150,000  $138,738  Yes 

Complete    
Downtown Improvements - 
DART Visit $5,000  $5,000  Yes 

Complete    

    Police 
Furniture & Fixtures $10,300  $0  No 
Project being reevaluated and will no longer happen this year.     
Weapon Lighting $2,100  $2,100  Yes 
Complete   

    Service 
Fire Hydrant Replacement 
Program $30,000  $26,461  No 

12 have been purchased and 11 installed, 1 more left   
Furnace for Garage $8,000  $8,000  Yes 
Finished   
2.5 Ton Dump Truck $160,000  $160,000  No 
Waiting on bed and plow equipment to be installed.    
Well Improvements $10,650  $10,650  Yes 
Complete   
Chlorinators $2,900  $2,894  Yes 
Purchased and received in January   
Trench Box $9,000  $8,653  Yes 
Purchased and received in January   
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   



 

9/30/2019  Submitted by M. Dodd 

Fire 
Self-Contained Breathing 
Apparatus $40,000  $35,412 Yes 

Complete   
Portable and Mobile Radios $3,000  $2,498  Yes 
Complete    
Command Staff Vehicle $40,000  $38,715  Yes 
Complete   

Fire Station #2 Parking Lot Imp.  $25,000  $24,300  Yes 

Complete   

Fire Station #2 Sleeping 
Quarters $50,000  $13,000  Yes 

Complete   

    
    Administration 
Bellbrook TV Portable Video 
Camera $3,000  $3,000  No 

Looking at options   

Police, Fire & Admin 
Workstations $19,200  $19,200  Yes 

Finished and complete   

Servers - moving to cloud 
based $42,000  $42,000  No 

Currently working on now   

Phone system - cloud based $14,000  $18,000  Yes 

Finished and complete   

Network Fiber  $14,680  $14,680  No 

Waiting to begin    
 

 

 

 


	2019-11-12 Agenda
	2019-10-28 Council Minutes
	Mr. Edwards read Ordinance 2019-19 An Ordinance Repealing Ordinance 2019-14 and Adopting new Ordinance 2019-19 to Adjust the City of Bellbrook Appropriations for 2019.  He explained that this is just revising the starting and ending amounts that were ...
	City Manager Melissa Dodd explained that this was due to a clerical error.  The revisions themselves stayed the same.

	Ordinance 2019-20 Waste Collection Fees
	2019-11-12 CM Update
	 Budget Work Session – Fire, Police and Capital – starts at 6pm
	Once reviewed, the final 2020 budget will come before Council as an ordinance at the November 26th meeting.
	 Introduction of Ordinances
	o 2019-20 An Ordinance Amending Waste Collection Fees – As a result of the budget discussion, the waste collection fee will increase from $14 to $15.50 per month beginning in January. This is to balance the revenue coming in with the expenses being pa...
	 Staff Recognition – Tonight we are honoring 9 employees for their dedicated service for anywhere from 5 to 35 years of service. Bellbrook staff is incredibly loyal and dedicated and I am absolutely honored to work with these fine folks. We truly do ...
	 Updates
	o Auditor of State Award for 2018 – A staff member from the Ohio Auditor of State’s Office came by last week to present the award for excellence in financial reporting to the City. This is for our 2018 financial statements.
	o Brook Mills Appreciation Plaque – Brandon Hough, Race Director for the Brook Mills 10k brought a plaque that has one of the medals and a race bib framed as a thank you to the City. It is proudly hanging in the lobby.
	o Lions Club Meeting – I went and spoke at the Lions Club meeting on the 6th to talk about the happenings in the City. I gave a year in review for 2019 and gave them some ideas for goals in 2020 which consisted of chipping away at the Comprehensive Pl...
	o Farmers Market – I met with Pamela Jeltema, who is a farmer’s market vendor and Bellbrook small business owner. She has offered to help with the farmers market. We are hoping to use this off season to really learn from the past year and make the nex...
	o Website – I have revamped the Boards area of the website to give each board their own page to be able to increase the amount of information related to each. We have uploaded previous meeting packets from this year and will post current meeting agend...
	o Safety Day – Our annual safety day will be held on November 20th. This helps us to fulfill our insurance requirements and also gives staff an opportunity to get together and learn. Council is invited to attend!
	o Staff Christmas Party – Our staff Christmas party is scheduled for noon on December 20. Council is of course invited to attend this as well!
	o Upcoming Council Meeting Items – The next two Council meetings will include the 2020 budget ordinance as well as the final supplemental appropriation ordinance to address any last minute needed changes which I expect to be minor in nature.
	o Staff Changes :
	 Service Department -  Maintenance Worker Tyler Bond has left as he took another position. We have offered the position to Kyle Stout who is the husband of Officer Alexi Stout. He is still going through the process but expected to start on November 18.
	 Police Department – We have filled the position of Administrative Assistant and Nichole Etchison started on November 5. She comes from the City of Kettering and brings a wealth of experience.  We have also filled the open Police Officer position wit...
	 Planning and Zoning – Jeff Green will be leaving as of November 27. Jessica Hansen of Greene County Regional Planning will be filling his position of Planning and Zoning Assistant and will start on December 9th. Council may remember her from our Com...

	2019-9-30 Finance Update
	Blank Page

